
 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

BPMC Minutes 12/12/2013 and 12/23/2013                                                            Page 1 of 21  

BRADLEY LAKE PROJECT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEETING 

REGULAR MEETING 

Alaska Energy Authority, Anchorage, Alaska 

December 12, 2013 

December 23, 2013 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

Chair Evans called the regular meeting of the Bradley Lake Hydroelectric Project Management 

Committee to order at 1:07 p.m.  

2. COMMITTEE MEMBERS ROLL CALL 

 

Brad Janorschke  Homer Electric Association (HEA) 

Cory Borgeson Golden  Valley Electric Association (phone) (GVEA) 

Sara Fisher-Goad  Alaska Energy Authority (AEA) 

Bradley Evans   Chugach Electric Association (CEA) 

Joe Griffith   Matanuska Electric Association (MEA) 

James Posey   Anchorage Municipal Light & Power (AML&P)  

John Foutz   City of Seward (SEW) 

 

3. STAFF/PUBLIC ROLL CALL 

 

Bryan Carey, Gene Therriault, Kelli Veech, Kirk Warren, Teri Webster, and Yolanda Inga (AEA); 

Kirk Gibson (McDowell Rackner & Gibson); Brian Hickey, Paul Johnson, and Burke Wick (CEA); 

Brian Bjorkquist (Department of Law); Lynn Thompson, Alan Gray (GVEA); Rick Baldwin, Robert 

Day, Alan Owens, Mark Perry, Carrie Buckley and J.D, Graves (HEA); Marvin Yoder, Kit Jones 

(MEA); Dan Kendall, Rick Miller, and Jeff Warner (AML&P); Gary Dixon (Swalling & Associates); 

Bernie Smith (Regulatory Commission of Alaska (RCA); Sunny Morrison, and Miranda Stucktill 

(Accu-Type Depositions); 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

There were no public comments. 

5. AGENDA COMMENTS/MOTION FOR APPROVAL 

 

The agenda was approved as amended. 

6. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MEETING MINUTES - July 9, 2013 

The July 9, 2013 meeting minutes were approved as presented. 

7. NEW BUSINESS 

7I. Fish Water screen debris removal 

 

Mr. Day gave a detailed PowerPoint presentation regarding the fish water screen debris removal 

issue.  He stated controlling the fish water has proven to be rather difficult.  Mr. Day noted there are 

agency requirements to maintain certain minimum flows in the lower Bradley river.  This is 



 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

BPMC Minutes 12/12/2013 and 12/23/2013                                                            Page 2 of 21  

accomplished by releasing water through the dam through two manifolds with a number of different 

sized valves.  In May of last year, all the valves were open and the flow could not be maintained, 

which could have resulted in a violation.  An investigation was conducted and the determination was 

made that the two bird cages, that were installed over the fish water inlets in 1993, were clogged. 

One cage was in a foot of mud with debris piled around it and the other was buried under 13 feet of 

rock and debris.  The debris field is approximately 500 cubic yards and extends into the mouth of the 

diversion tunnel, so that the stop logs cannot be dropped in their slots to block off the tunnel. 

 

There are four basic options to unclog the bird cages. The first option is an airlift hydraulic dredging 

with divers and a floating platform.  An issue with this solution is the fish water release valves cannot 

be opened while divers are in the water.  The question for the agencies is if fish water flow has to be 

maintained at all times. 

 

Option two is to drain the lake level down to the top of the diversion tunnel intake and remove the 

material out through a water dredging action (sluicing). The same question about the fish water flow 

has to be addressed.   

 

Option three is to pull the lake level down all the way to 1,068 ft. to the level of the horizontal apron 

in front of the diversion tunnel and place an excavator and backhoe on the apron to conduct a 

thorough cleaning.  This option requires either a huge expense in pumping or a pass from the 

agencies on the fish water release. 

 

Option four is to delay any solution for a year to allow for further study.  A standby pump would be 

recommended to be in place. 

 

Mr. Posey asked where the debris will be moved so it does not go down the tunnel.  Mr. Day stated if 

the debris are pushed off the front end of the apron, it will go out into the old lake area.  Mr. Posey 

asked could the agencies take three to four months to make a decision and delay any work until next 

year, and who, other than Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC), has to give an answer on 

moving forward with timing and options.  Mr. Day responded he does not know how long it will take 

the agencies to make their decisions but FERC is expected to get their advice from the environmental 

agencies. 

 

Mr. Griffith asked what would make us think the environmental agencies would not demand the 

current continued operations.  Mr. Day stated he has personal experience with the issues regarding 

Battle Creek releases where the fish water was going to be warmer, so the fish were going to be fatter 

and more easily caught by predators. 

 

Chair Evans asked for an explanation of what happened when debris was removed from the power 

tunnel.  Mr. Day stated the stop logs were put in, but cleaning the debris in the Power tunnel has 

nothing to do with the lake level. 

 

Mr. Griffith believes the agencies are not going to roll over on their fish water release flow.  Chair 

Evans asked if we are in jeopardy if we take the time to ask.  Mr. Day stated if Mr. Griffith is correct, 

then option one is really the only option to proceed and complete this year.  Chair Evans suggested 

knowing whether or not dragging up pumps to do a fish water release is necessary before 

communicating with the agencies.  Mr. Day stated he will find out. 

 

Mr. Griffith commented option one and two run the risk of not being able to do it correctly and 

tearing up something.  Mr. Griffith agrees with the Operations & Dispatch (O&D) Committee that 



 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

BPMC Minutes 12/12/2013 and 12/23/2013                                                            Page 3 of 21  

option three should be chosen.  The question remains regarding a waiver or a reduction in the fish 

water flow. 

 

Chair Evans asked if we are in jeopardy if a waiver is requested.  Mr. Carey commented he does not 

believe we are in jeopardy, because the lake level can continue to be drawn down during the winter.  

He recommended meeting with the agencies in January to get their response.  Chair Evans stated it 

takes time to logistically organize each of these options and if it takes the agencies 120 days or 

longer to provide an answer, the jeopardy is not being able to mobilize the operations this year.  

Chair Evans asked how long it will take the agencies to answer.  Mr. Carey stated Fish and Game 

should provide an answer fairly quickly and Fish and Wildlife should provide an answer by a date 

certain. 

 

Chair Evans asked Mr. Day if we can run some of this to ground and have a meeting at the beginning 

of January.  Mr. Day agreed.  Mr. Day asked Mr. Gray if Global has indicated their timeframe.  Mr. 

Gray stated he does not have a specific time of when they would need a contract in place and will ask 

them.  He commented if there is no answer by the middle of February, then it would be difficult to 

get the logistics organized. 

 

Ms. Fisher-Goad noted she is concerned about the dam safety and the working conditions that are 

needed for the valves and believes there needs to be a plan to correct the problem in 2014, regardless 

of the response from FERC.  Ms. Fisher-Goad commented it would be nice to have more information 

on what type of leeway there is with respect to dam safety also being a concern. 

 

Mr. Posey commented the only reason a delay to 2015 would occur is if the agencies cannot come 

together timely enough for the work to be completed in 2014.  Mr. Day stated one of the options 

would be to put the contract in place with a cancellation clause, pursuing option one and option three 

at the same time and cancelling whichever option is not possible. 

 

Chair Evans recommended this issue needs to be taken out of the boardroom and back to the O&D 

Committee and refine the options with the emphasis on getting it completed in 2014.  Chair Evans 

suggested returning at the beginning of January and have some of the information worked down to a 

level where the Board can make the final call.  Mr. Day commented his point was to ensure the 

BPMC understood this is significant money that has not been budgeted and has not been planned. 

 

Mr. Janorschke asked if there is a chance there would be a fish water bypass violation due to lack of 

flow in 2014 and if so, what are the penalties.  Mr. Day stated we were right at the cusp of having a 

violation last year and it is weather-dependent.  Mr. Carey said if spring comes late and there is no 

supplemental pumping of water, there is a good chance of having some type of violation.  He noted 

FERC has not been attaching penalty fees.  The position of AEA is not to have any violations. 

 

Mr. Griffith asked if the single pump provides enough flow to meet the known reductions.  Mr. Day 

stated it is based on the idea that 75 percent of the required flows can be reached and the pump is big 

enough to provide the extra 25 percent flow, if needed. 

 

Chair Evans asked Mr. Day if the task is clear for the next meeting.  Mr. Day stated he will pursue 

with the agencies and will come back with an answer.  Chair Evans requested he provide information 

on what happened the last time a draw down occurred for debris removal.  Mr. Posey requested 

contacting the proposed contractor regarding the specifics of a cancellation clause. 

 

Mr. Day expressed his appreciation to Mr. Owens for the amount of work he has done regarding this 

issue.  Mr. Carey stated his goal is to receive some answers from FERC within the next seven days. 



 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

BPMC Minutes 12/12/2013 and 12/23/2013                                                            Page 4 of 21  

 

7J.  Fish water flows 

 

Mr. Carey gave a detailed PowerPoint presentation on maintaining minimum fish water flows at 

tidewater.  It takes anywhere from three to five hours from when water is released at the dam to when 

it makes it down to the tidewater.  Starting in 2010, there is a five-year trial amendment with FERC 

allowing short-term deviations of up to 7.5 percent, as long as the moving 24-hour average is above 

the required amount of CFS.  Mr. Carey recommends this trial amendment become permanent, with a 

possible change of deviations of up to 10 percent. 

 

Chair Evans asked if the detection measuring infrastructure is working correctly.  Mr. Carey stated 

during the winter when it is ice affected, they realistically cannot tell how much water is coming 

down.  During the summer, a FERC standard USGS gauge is used, which is accurate up to 

plus/minus 10 percent. 

 

Mr. Griffith asked if the instrument is ever checked.  Mr. Carey noted U.S Geological Survey 

(USGS) downloads data and check the instruments approximately every six weeks and after a storm 

they recheck the channel, recalibrate their rating curve and change their historical numbers.  

 

Mr. Carey recommends discussing with FERC and agencies any alternatives that would start running 

closer to the minimum flow, which would produce more energy, but still protect the habitat. 

 

Mr. Griffith commented relying entirely on USGS metering may be part of the issue.  He asked if 

there was any possibility of placing different, more trustworthy equipment to model the flow.  Mr. 

Carey stated gauge equipment can be placed, but FERC will still take the USGS numbers.  Mr. Carey 

noted a read out is received from the USGS on 15-minute intervals.   

 

Mr. Carey commented below the North Fork, closer to tidewater, a small 10-foot tall re-regulation 

dam (re-reg) can be put in to smooth out the different pulses of water.  Mr. Griffith asked if it would 

be like a surge tank on the river.  Mr. Carey agreed and gave the example of if we could reduce the 

excess water by 10,000 acre-feet that would be more than 10,000 megawatt hours at $100 a 

megawatt hour, which is a gain of a million dollars of energy per year.  Mr. Griffith asked where the 

re-reg dam would be placed.  Mr. Carey stated it would need to be placed between tidewater and 

where the middle fork comes in.  Mr. Griffith asked if that is where the flow, irrespective of what the 

fish do.  Mr. Carey agreed and noted the salmon do not go far past the tidewater gauge because they 

are faced with falls.  Mr. Griffith requested that option be reviewed.  Mr. Carey stated under the 

Chair's direction, he could request the engineer to provide a concept of costs. 

 

Mr. Owens explained when the dam was originally constructed; the control system did not have the 

capability to be modulated.  It was either fully open or fully closed.  He noted HEA has installed a 

control system that can now handle modulation of the valves; the hardware will be in place by the 

end of this year. Mr. Owens explained they do not have a decent analog signal from the USGS. 

 

Chair Evans requested this issue be reviewed by the O&D Committee and refine what is the best way 

forward before a budget item or project is approved. 

 

Mr. Griffith asked if BPMC is currently a member of the National Hydropower Association involved 

in the Operational Excellence Program.  Mr. Carey stated AEA has not been using the program 

because it is more of a recent initiative.  Mr. Carey commented HEA or Chugach may be interested 

in the program.  Mr. Griffith stated BPMC probably ought to become a member.  Ms. Fisher-Goad 

noted AEA is a member of NHA and any of the operations of taking advantage of the Operational 



 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

BPMC Minutes 12/12/2013 and 12/23/2013                                                            Page 5 of 21  

Excellence Program can be covered under AEA's membership and would be useful to BPMC.  Mr. 

Posey said Eklutna would like to think about utilizing the program for the same reasons.  Mr. 

Janorschke believes HEA is also a member of NHA. 

 

7M.  Status of governor Programmable Logic Controller (PLC) replacement project 

 

Mr. Day commented the Bradley Governor PLC Replacement Project is part of this year's budget and 

is moving forward.  Mr. Owens provided an update on the replacement project. 

 

Mr. Griffith asked who is going to the factory acceptance test.  Mr. Owens stated he is and he would 

like to get at least one of the operators with extensive knowledge of the control system.  Mr. Griffith 

asked if the new control system will do anything for modulating the valves.  Mr. Owens explained 

they are separate systems, but the new control system (the DCS) does have the ability to add any kind 

of logic the controls may need. 

 

Mr. Posey asked what is the age of the VA Tech and is it no longer supported or is this an update. 

Mr. Day stated is it seven years old and the software and hardware are not supported.  They are still 

operating, but it has been nearly impossible to find anybody to assist with correcting issues.  VA 

Tech flew in a software technician from Austria to work on the system and that could have caused 

more harm than good because some of the algorithms and control parameters changed when the 

software was installed. 

 

Chair Evans asked if anything they have done has had an effect on the failures of the governor.  Mr. 

Day noted that would be hard for an engineer to say.  Something has changed and they cannot find 

anybody who can assist in correcting the present issues with the current equipment because it is no 

longer made or supported.  Chair Evans asked if replacing the governor will solve the problem or is 

this overspending to solve the problem.  Mr. Day explained the governor is a computer control 

system that is broken and is no longer supported.  Chair Evans asked if any internal upgrades have 

been made to the governor.  Mr. Day stated no internal upgrades have been made to the governor. 

 

Chair Evans asked for a description of what has been done to date. The older SCADA system and 

annunciator systems were updated put in one box (the DCS).  Chair Evans asked if the controls in the 

governor were updated to a newer version.  Mr. Day stated the controls of the Governor were not 

updated. 

 

Chair Evans noted his concern the money could be spent and still have a stability problem.  Mr. Day 

believes with good people, good hardware and good programming, we will have a better product than 

we have today.  Chair Evans asked if Emerson is the right answer or if they are six months away 

from being obsolete.  Mr. Day stated Emerson is the right answer.  Mr. Owens noted Emerson is a 

world class control system.  Chair Evans noted VA Tech is as well. Mr. Owens stated Emerson has a 

track record of maintaining 20-year-old systems.  Mr. Owens pointed out that if Emerson becomes 

obsolete then CEA’s SPP plant will be in the same boat as they have an Emerson control system at 

SPP.   

 

Chair Evans commented the last time an upgrade was done there was a technical group involved to 

do vetting and AEA was a lot more involved.  He asked if this upgrade is being handled in the same 

way.  Mr. Day stated no, and does not believe it needs to be handled the way it was previously.  Mr. 

Griffith asked if Mr. Day feels fully confident that in five years the story will be a success.  Mr. Day 

believes the story will be a success in a year. 

 



 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

BPMC Minutes 12/12/2013 and 12/23/2013                                                            Page 6 of 21  

Chair Evans commented it has been his experience that there is all kinds of help when something is 

being bought and then after the item is bought, the same relationship problems will occur with 

Emerson that are occurring with VA Tech.  He noted his concern is that all of the work completed to 

identify and correct the stability problems is not connected to what is occurring now.  Chair Evans 

expressed he is uncomfortable because there was a tremendous effort not that long ago. 

 

Mr. Posey agreed with Chair Evans and noted they had to wait for one specific person from Europe 

to help and ended up with a product that became obsolete.  Mr. Posey stated he is sympathetic to how 

the problem is being approached because the last upgrade was not easy and this time will not be easy 

either.  He believes working with the folks in Petersburg is probably the right thing to do. 

 

Chair Evans stated that same risk is run on any project.  He noted his concern is what BPMC has 

control over, which is the work that was done to solve the stability problems.  Chair Evans believes 

there needs to be a great deal of care to ensure all of that prior work does not get missed in the 

implementation. 

 

Mr. Posey agreed with Chair Evans and remembered a big part of the previous problem was the 

hardware not working correctly with the software. Chair Evans advised there needs to be some 

assurance in paying attention to the implementation of this system so that it achieves the same result 

as the first system. 

 

Chair Evans recommended some of the people who worked on the last system review this system and 

given their opinion.   

 

Mr. Day commented he welcomes the Chair and Committee's assignment of people who would like 

to conduct technical review of the documentation.  Chair Evans said he would feel more comfortable 

if a technical coordinating committee was convened to discuss these issues and come back to the 

Board with the recommendation.  

 

Mr. Owens requested names and email addresses of the people Chair Evans would recommend be 

part of the technical coordinating committee so Mr. Owens can provide the information to them 

before the engineering review.  Chair Evans noted he was on the previous committee, but will not 

attend this committee.  Mr. Griffith stated he might attend. 

 

7P.  Budget Amendment 

  

Ms. Fisher-Goad invited Ms. Veech to speak on one aspect of the budget issue.  Ms. Veech requested 

a specific dollar amount to the budget amendment noted in the July 9th, 2013 minutes regarding the 

approval of an increase in contract for relay and meter replacement.  Ms. Veech noted the interest 

earnings for the FY 2014 budget were estimated to be $2.2 million.  Ms. Veech advised there will be 

a shortfall of those earnings of $717,000. 

 

Ms. Veech stated the other item of interest was the fish water screen debris removal action.  She 

commented this item looks like it has been delayed.  Ms. Veech requested specific dollar amounts to 

revise the budget and can bring the revised budget to the Committee at the next meeting in January. 

 

Chair Evans stated it sounds like Ms. Veech has enough input so she can take care of what we know 

now and then when the fish water screen debris numbers come in, she can revise the budget again.  

Chair Evans asked if there was a sense of urgency in making the fish water screen debris adjustment 

now.  Ms. Veech stated ideally if a budget amendment was approved in January, collection would 

start February through June.  Chair Evans believes the amount will be large enough to appear in their 



 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

BPMC Minutes 12/12/2013 and 12/23/2013                                                            Page 7 of 21  

billing but not affect the power sales agreement.  Chair Evans stated the Committee could probably 

pass the budget amendment and then work on contract numbers for the fish water screen debris 

removal item and get that processed as quickly as possible. 

 

Ms.  Fisher-Goad stated the three issues are the relay and meter replacement project, the interest 

shortfall, and the fish water screen debris removal.  Chair Evans suggested budgeting the top range 

for the fish water screen debris removal.  Mr. Griffith stated he would prefer to budget the top range 

numbers for the fish water screen debris removal.  Chair Evans requested Ms. Veech look up the 

numbers for the top of the range as she understands it today and use that for the revised budget. 

 

Mr. Griffith thought there was a number attached to the relay and meter replacement project.  Ms. 

Veech stated she has $410,000 for the relay and meter replacement project.  Mr. Owens stated 

$410,000 is the correct number.  Chair Evans asked if that money is going to be spent before the end 

of this fiscal year.  Mr. Owens agreed and advised the relay project is 99 percent complete.  Mr. 

Owens reported the project is currently $140,000 under budget with a few remaining items to 

complete. 

 

Chair Evans asked if this is an additional $310,000 over what has already been spent.  Mr. Owens 

explained initially there was $900,000 budgeted for this project.  The project came in on bid at $1.4 

million.  Mr. Owens stated BPMC was asked for the shortfall of $410,000 to meet the bid estimates.  

He explained with the bid estimate of 1.4 million, the project is currently at 1.3 million.  Chair Evans 

stated it does not sound like more funding is needed.  Mr. Owens agreed no more funding is needed 

and is expected to come in under budget. 

 

7A.  2013 Financial audit - Action item 

 

MOTION:  Mr. Griffith made a motion to approve the Resolution 7A. that the Bradley Lake 

Project Management Committee accept the Fiscal Year 2013 audit report and approve the 

refund to the utilities.  Motion seconded. 

 

Chair Evans asked if the money has to be moved because the Committee is going to turn around, do a 

budget adjustment and spend the money.  Mr. Posey stated the money has to be moved at the end of 

the year.  Mr. Griffith stated previously the money did not have to be moved, but Anchorage 

Municipal Light and Power had a problem with that procedure.  Mr. Posey said an audit occurred and 

it was determined the procedure has to take place under the agreement.  Ms. Veech explained FY13 

is closed and the funds have to be refunded.  Mr. Dixon noted each utility makes an entry in their 

books for this refund amount before they close the books for their year-end audits. 

 

Chair Evans requested Mr. Dixon explain the audit in more detail and specifically identify where the 

refunded funds came from.  Mr. Dixon reported this audit covers the revenue and operating funds.  

Page four of the financial statements show the monies contributed by the participating utilities.  The 

most significant budget variance is in the operations and maintenance line.  Page 13 has the detail of 

the variances between the budgeted monies collected and how they were spent on operations.   

 

Mr. Dixon explained the monies being refunded come from two buckets.  The first bucket is from the 

Renewal & Contingency (R&C) fund, which has a cap on it.  The expenditures have been low 

enough that the R&C fund has reached its cap.  Any amount above the cap that would be in the fund, 

minus any unpaid bills, will be refunded at the end of the year.  Mr. Dixon explained the second 

bucket represents the residual amounts budgeted and collected that were greater than expended. 

 



 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

BPMC Minutes 12/12/2013 and 12/23/2013                                                            Page 8 of 21  

Chair Evans stated the FERC land use fees were more than double what was budgeted.  He thought 

that was resolved and asked how that issue was missed.  Mr. Carey explained historically the budget 

was at about $61,000 a year for the FERC land use fees.  He believed the fees were going to jump to 

about $178,000, but they did not for the first year.  There was a first year special, which was about 75 

percent or $130,000.  Chair Evans asked if that is a loss of 300 percent.  Mr. Bjorkquist stated Chair 

Evans could characterize it that way.  Chair Evans asked if the FERC land use fees were going to get 

worse.  Mr. Carey stated there was a per acre fee increase and believes next year the fee will be in the 

$180,000 range. Chair Evans would like to have it clear on the record that our people fought the good 

fight and they took some casualties, but we came out ahead 

 

Chair Evans asked AEA for an explanation on how the insurance came out substantially less than 

what was budgeted.  Ms. Fisher-Goad believes a refund was received through the insurance.  Mr. 

Carey stated there was a recent refund of $20,000 to $30,000 and the insurance policy was a little 

less than expected by about $20,000.   

 

Chair Evans asked if the FERC administration fee was at 10 percent and did they actually do some 

work for BPMC.  Mr. Carey explained FERC funds their operations from the administration fees on 

the different licensees.  The fee can change year-to-year and it is based on capacity.  Mr. Gibson 

noted it is like the RCA regulatory fee. 

 

Mr. Griffith asked if anyone knows what happens to the $200,000 fee to AEA.  Chair Evans stated in 

the beginning, that number was a seven-figure number originally and then it was negotiated down.  

The appropriate fee was decided because AEA was providing enough of an owner's effort to warrant 

the current fee. Ms. Fisher-Goad said a part of the fee pays for Mr. Carey's time and staffs time in the 

finance department.  

 

Mr. Griffith stated $670,000 was spent to help Battle Creek.  Mr. Gibson noted there are monies 

running through the R&C fund that were spent that are not part of this statement.  Ms. Veech stated 

there are two Battle Creek grants which are not part of this statement.  Mr. Dixon stated the actual 

books of Bradley are wider than the columns we look at here. 

 

Chair Evans asked if the R&C fund was originally established through the indenture and has the 

R&C fund lived through all of the iterations of the new indentures for the new debt financing put in 

place.  Mr. Griffith agreed.  Chair Evans asked if the R&C fund amount is a minimum amount.  Mr. 

Griffith agreed.  Chair Evans requested the Committee members review the appropriateness of that 

level, given the plant is being depreciated, but it doesn't really get collected.  Chair Evans stated $5 

million does not go very far, given the nature of the plant and how expensive things are.  He said the 

consumers that are benefiting today are consuming the asset and not doing anything to replace it.  

There is the argument that the new members have to get a loan and start all over again.  Mr. Griffith 

thinks it would be good to review the R&C level.  Chair Evans requested the Budget Committee start 

a discussion on that.  

 

The motion was approved unanimously. 

 

7B.  Bradley Static Var Compensator (SVC) maintenance agreement - Action Item 

 

MOTION:  Ms. Fisher-Goad made a motion to table this item to the next meeting date.  Motion 

seconded by Mr. Posey.  The motion was approved unanimously. 

 

Mr. Janorschke requested a red line copy from the current SVC maintenance agreement before the 

next meeting.  



 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

BPMC Minutes 12/12/2013 and 12/23/2013                                                            Page 9 of 21  

 

7C.  Homer Electric Association (HEA) transmission tariff filing - Action item 

 

MOTION:  Mr. Griffith made a motion to adopt Resolution 2013.02.  Motion was seconded by 

Mr.  Posey. 

 

Mr. Janorschke stated he has concern with some of the whereas clauses.  He does not believe the 

tariff is in dispute with the BPMC with the transmission system.  Mr. Janorschke believes it falls 

within the regulatory arena with the RCA. 

 

Mr. Griffith stated he does not accept and does not agree with Mr. Janorschke's comments.  He does 

not know who will adjudicate this disagreement.  Mr. Griffith noted right now they are operating 

under the wheeling agreement which requires arbitration if there is a disagreement.  Mr. Griffith 

believes the disagreement does not belong in the RCA filing in place.  Mr. Griffith believes the 

BPMC members think Mr. Janorschke's assessment in the tariff filing is inaccurate. 

 

Mr. Janorschke stated he appreciated the discussions he has had with Mr. Griffith in the past 

regarding this issue and stated he knows they have different views of the agreement. HEA's position 

is to take it to the Regulatory Commission to resolve the dispute and if the Regulatory Commission 

believes they are not the appropriate party to resolve the dispute then the dispute gets taken back to 

the BPMC or to the resolution process.  

 

Mr. Griffith commented in the interest of pursuing dual paths on this issue, the rest of us have an 

intent to file with the Superior Court at the same time to enforce the existing agreement.  Mr. Griffith 

noted he made Mr. Janorschke aware of this the other day.   

 

Chair Evans asked Mr. Janorschke if debate is going to help this issue.  Mr. Janorschke stated debate 

will not help because he disagrees with some of the whereas clauses in the resolution. 

 

Mr. Griffith stated it is not clear in the wheeling agreement who declares that the disagreement 

should go to arbitration.  Mr. Gibson explained there is a dispute resolution process under the BPMC 

bylaws.  By the way the positions have been set out, HEA does not believe it falls under the BPMC.  

The services agreement has a different dispute resolution process.  Mr. Griffith noted the lease 

agreement expires at the end of this month, but the services agreement does not expire at the end of 

this month.  Mr. Gibson commented if the BPMC was putting the actions under the services 

agreement, then the dispute resolution would naturally follow the services agreement. 

 

Mr. Griffith asked if that is logical.  Mr. Gibson stated there is a choice because it is a BPMC issue 

and it could also fall under the BPMC bylaws concerning dispute resolution.  Mr. Gibson advised if 

the BPMC believes this disagreement is a violation of the services agreement, then it has to be 

resolved using the dispute resolution from the services agreement. 

 

Mr. Griffith asked Mr. Gibson if the bylaws say any dispute is adjudicated in court.  Mr. Gibson 

explained the process as the Committee decides if it can act.  If the Committee can act, the 

Committee decides its actions.  Any action will be subject to judicial review.  If the Committee does 

not know if it can act, the court makes the determination. Mr. Griffith asked if judicial review means 

the Superior Court. 

 

Chair Evans asked for an explanation of how the resolution process works in the services agreement.  

Mr. Gibson explained the services resolution dispute resolution process is a little odd because 10B 

talks about having a meeting between the parties, but it gives Chugach a strength in the agreement 



 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

BPMC Minutes 12/12/2013 and 12/23/2013                                                            Page 10 of 21  

because the affirmative vote from Chugach is required for adoption of any procedures.  Mr. Griffith 

noted 12C states everything continues as-is until the dispute is resolved.  Mr. Gibson agreed. 

 

Mr. Janorschke commented part of his disagreement with the resolution is HEA has tried to resolve 

these issues for quite a while and have made it very clear for a lengthy period of time HEA's intent to 

file a tariff across their system.  He strongly disagrees that HEA's filing has improperly put at risk the 

reliability of the transmission system, improperly subverted the priority of the project, and 

improperly increased the cost of delivering power.  Mr. Janorschke stated the intent is to start 

collecting the fair fees associated with delivering power across HEA's system that historically have 

not been adequately collected.  He does not believe anyone is asking to go across the GVEA system 

or the Chugach system without proper compensation. 

 

Mr. Griffith stated it is done all the time to MEA's system, but that is another story.  Mr. Posey 

commented MEA has a contract with the state.  Mr. Griffith stated MEA does not have a contract, 

but they do have an order from the Commission. 

 

Mr. Janorschke stated the filing of the tariff was modeled after what GVEA and Chugach have done, 

but the fees charged are lower than both GVEA and Chugach.  Mr. Janorschke stated this has a huge 

impact on operations and he will vote against Resolution 2013-02. 

 

Mr. Baldwin expressed his concerns about whether the BPMC action has standing to get involved in 

this situation and recommended careful review before any filing to avoid procedural wrangling.  Mr. 

Baldwin noted the parties will have an interest in the tariff and requested examination of that 

question. 

 

Mr. Borgeson commented that Golden Valley Electric Association is interested in finding a 

negotiated resolution to this matter.  Mr. Borgeson stated GVEA is in support of the Resolution 

2013-02. 

 

Mr. Foutz apologized for needing explanation of the issues and requested a summary of the tariff at 

issue with the RCA.  Mr. Janorschke explained the current lease agreement HEA has with Chugach 

expires at the end of 2013.  HEA is setting up their own dispatching area and have filed a wheeling 

tariff for any energy going across HEA's system.  He stated this is very similar to what Golden 

Valley Electric Association and Chugach has done with their systems.  Mr. Janorschke stated part of 

the reason for the tariff is other users want to use HEA's system and it does not matter whether they 

are Bradley participants or independent power producers (IPP).  He stated HEA has also filed a tariff 

on the losses issue, which does have a significant impact on their system.  He noted the biggest 

challenge right now is trying to go back and recover the costs HEA is incurring having the Bradley 

power go across their system.  Mr. Janorschke stated it is much more extensive than Bradley power 

just flowing up the east side of HEA's system, between Bradley Junction and Soldotna.  He stated if 

there are doubts whether the Bradley project impacts HEA's system, he recommended talking to Mr. 

Burlingame.  He explained this is an integral part of their system, including the other generation 

assets which do support the peninsula.   

 

Mr. Borgeson asked what the annual dollar amount is that HEA wishes to collect under this tariff and 

the Bradley participants.  Mr. Janorschke believes it is $2.9 million.  He noted HEA utilized 

consultants the members have previously used to help draft the tariff and the basis for the numbers.  

He stated they are requesting approval on an interim refundable rate from the Regulatory 

Commission. 

 



 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

BPMC Minutes 12/12/2013 and 12/23/2013                                                            Page 11 of 21  

Mr. Foutz asked Mr. Janorschke if the tariff is for losses and wheeling.  Mr. Janorschke stated there 

are two different tariffs.  Mr. Foutz asked if this resolution geared toward one tariff or both tariffs.  

Mr. Janorschke stated this resolution is geared just toward the wheeling tariff. 

 

The motion was approved with one opposed (HEA). 

 

RECESS FOR THE DAY 

The meeting will be recessed until December 23, 2013, at 9:30 a.m.  Chair Evans recessed the 

meeting at 3:35 p.m. 

 

 

 

Monday, December 23, 2013 

CALL BACK TO ORDER 

Chair Evans reconvened the meeting at 9:38 a.m.  Committee members Borgeson, Fisher-Goad, 

Griffith, Posey, Janorschke, and Foutz were present. 

7D.  Adoption of Reliability Standards - Action item 

MOTION:  Mr. Griffith made a motion to adopt Item 7D.  Motion seconded by Mr. Borgeson.  

 

Mr. Griffith stated the document was approved by Intertie Management Committee (IMC) within the 

last 60 days.  Mr. Griffith commented it is entirely appropriate for the BPMC adopt these reliability 

standards because it is a most accurate representation of how the system operates.  He will be voting 

in favor of adoption and recommends all other do the same. 

 

Mr. Janorschke commented by voting affirmatively on this resolution the members are 

acknowledging that we have been briefed by staff or have read the reliability standards.  Mr. 

Janorschke stated he has some questions regarding the documents.  He did not get to read all of the 

documents because Exhibits F and G were excluded from what he received.  Mr. Janorschke asked if 

the Bradley O&D Committee has reviewed the implementation of these standards and has their 

recommendation been given to the BPMC Committee. 

 

Mr. Griffith stated he does not know if the O&D Committee formally acted on it.  The same people 

created the Railbelt Reliability Committee (RRC).  Mr. Janorschke stated these standards are not the 

same as the RRC.  Mr. Griffith stated these standards have been changed and updated in the last 60 

days to correct syntax, English errors, reference errors and things like that, but does not believe any 

substantive changes were made. 

 

Chair Evans commented the big change was that AEA took the standards through a very lengthy 

public process and advised comment.  There were changes in adoption of the open access language 

which RRC did not include.  Mr. Griffith advised there was a precise listing of the suggested 

changes. 

 



 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

BPMC Minutes 12/12/2013 and 12/23/2013                                                            Page 12 of 21  

Mr. Janorschke asked if he was correct in understanding the BPMC O&D Committee has not 

reviewed the implementation of these standards.  Chair Evans stated that is not a fair 

characterization, because it was the same people and it went through a public process.  He said these 

standards will be given to the O&D Committee to review and they will determine what is appropriate 

for a power plant to operate in the system. 

 

Mr. Janorschke stated that as an IPP, Bradley has a spin requirement.  Chair Evans stated he does not 

know about that.  Mr. Janorschke stated everyone has agreed Bradley is an IPP.  Chair Evans does 

not know that anybody at the table has agreed Bradley is an IPP.  Mr. Griffith said he has stated that, 

but is not sure everybody agrees with him.  Mr. Griffith does not believe the state views Bradley as 

an IPP.  Mr. Griffith commented Bradley acts and looks to him like an IPP, but does not know if it 

has a spin requirement.  Chair Evans explained there is a spin requirement if MEA's schedule 

constitutes his largest unit.  Mr. Griffith agreed with that characterization. 

 

Mr. Janorschke asked if the IPP has the spin requirement associated with it, does HEA reserve on the 

transmission system capacity for that spin requirement. This will reduce the available deliverability 

of power from the Kenai Peninsula to Anchorage.  Chair Evans stated that is already a common 

practice and is not changing.  Mr. Janorschke noted they have not put a spin requirement on Bradley.  

Chair Evans stated Mr. Janorschke could have had spin, but if it is transmission constrained, it cannot 

be booked.  Mr. Janorschke stated that is one of his questions for the O&D Committee. 

 

Mr. Janorschke stated he understands in Exhibit F there is a requirement to have 100 percent backup 

for 45 consecutive days of operation.  He asked if this is required for the governor project this 

summer and if so, that will have a huge impact.  Mr. Griffith advised the language says "45 days of 

operation fully backed up."  Mr. Griffith believes the 100 percent backup is already occurring.  Chair 

Evans agreed. 

 

Mr. Janorschke stated the standards also require interconnection agreements, relays, metering, 

switches and communication equipment, essentially putting a substation at Bradley Junction.  Mr. 

Janorschke said he is not opposed to that, but wants to ensure these standards have been reviewed 

before the O&D Committee suggests numerous exceptions.  Chair Evans does not read the standards 

that way and believes Mr. Janorschke's interpretation is very liberal.  Chair Evans stated the O&D 

Committee can debate that issue.  Chair Evans said he is not going to debate the standards line-by-

line at the table.  Chair Evans commented for every one exception that can be found in the standards, 

there are 1,000 items in the standards which are the way BPMC wants to operate. 

 

Mr. Janorschke was not aware the IMC has been the railbelt reliability coordinator for the grid for 

over 25 years and requested clarification on what they have done in that period of time.  Mr. 

Janorschke requested an explanation of the use of best interest in the sentence, "the Committee has 

determined it is in the best interest of the purchasing utilities to implement these standards."  Mr. 

Janorschke stated he was not aware Bradley had a problem and asked what is the issue with the 

standards. 

 

Mr. Borgeson commented the IMC has adopted these reliability standards, so they are already in 

place.  Mr. Borgeson stated the group of utilities have adopted the reliability standards and have 

indicated the intent to file them as part of the tariffs.  Mr. Borgeson noted he supports the passage of 

the resolution with a clear understanding that these are organic agreements and standards that will 

change.  He said there are going to be problems with the standards and exceptions will need to be 

made, but there needs to be some basic reliability standards for the transmission lines that are 

interconnected to protect the system.  Mr. Borgeson stated he asked the IMC last week the question 

about Bradley having a spinning reserve.  He reported the answer was Bradley does not need a 



 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

BPMC Minutes 12/12/2013 and 12/23/2013                                                            Page 13 of 21  

spinning reserve because of the protocols that are in place.  Mr. Borgeson recommended the O&D 

Committee work on whatever issues need to be amended.  Mr. Borgeson said it is a good start, but 

not the end. 

 

Mr. Foutz agreed with Mr. Borgeson's comments.  Mr. Foutz said his concern is ensuring the state is 

finished reviewing and amending the reliability standards before BPMC adopts the resolution.  Ms. 

Fisher-Goad advised the state is comfortable with the resolution and believes it is a good working 

guide.  The state has supported the reliability standards at the IMC.  She noted there is an 

understanding there may be some amendments to them along the way and the state is committed to 

working with the utilities to formalize the way the system has been operating.  She noted 

enforcement mechanisms and sanctions are on a separate track.  She reported 354 pages, which 

included Exhibits F and G, have been on the AEA web page since October for public comment and 

advised for the record that no public comments were received.  An unidentified speaker noted CIRI 

requested a meeting with AEA to discuss the documents.  Ms. Fisher-Goad said the state intends to 

support the adoption of these reliability standards. 

 

Chair Evans commented one of the reasons for adopting the reliability standards is there has been 

more pressure regarding open access and how the system is being operated.  He noted more IPP's 

want to be on the system, so there has to be standards for the IPP's to adhere to and let them know 

how the system operates.  Chair Evans noted everyone realizes these standards are organic and any 

issues that do not make sense or that are disruptive to the day-to-day operations will be addressed.  

These standards provide established practices and framework that new producers will have to follow, 

including incorporating their generation, using the transmission, serving their customers, and how 

they conduct business on the system.  Chair Evans stated the benefits of the interconnection through 

all of the generation and substations needs to be protected by these rules and regulations.  He said 

there is a docket downtown currently that is making disparaging remarks about the BPMC.  He noted 

all of the rules and regulations have been in place in the Lower 48 and the multitude of IPP projects 

in the Lower 48 have managed to come online with these rules and regulations.  Chair Evans advised 

this system is being modeled as much as possible on industry standards that are supported through 

other important regulations.  He stated if there is going to be open access on the system, there has to 

be rules and regulations and it is a work in progress. 

 

Mr. Janorschke stated he agreed with most of Chair Evan's comments.  The intent of his questions 

were focused on how these standards apply to Bradley and the amount of exceptions and waivers 

going forward.  Chair Evans stated he is not saying there are going to be any waivers for Bradley.  

Chair Evans commented if Mr. Janorschke wants the same people who have been reviewing these 

standards for the last five years to sit down and see what they have missed, that is fine, but it is not a 

reason to stall this resolution. 

 

Mr. Borgeson commented another reason he is in favor of this resolution is it properly places this 

issue into the Bradley group.  He noted he likes the idea of the inclusion of all of the utilities sharing 

the expense and effort in reviewing these standards.  Mr. Borgeson stated he shares some of the same 

concerns as Mr. Janorschke regarding waivers and how issue could arise from that. 

 

Mr. Posey stated AML&P supports the resolution.  He noted there are exceptions for the 

consideration for those who are less than 10 megawatts.  He believes this is the right thing to do. 

 

Mr. Day stated he is troubled as the agent of this Committee in terms of managing and operating 

Bradley.  He is glad to do whatever BPMC instructs, but has concerns about what the standards say 

about interconnection standards, spin requirement standards and testing standards.  He commented he 



 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

BPMC Minutes 12/12/2013 and 12/23/2013                                                            Page 14 of 21  

either obeys those standards or he does not obey those standards and he is unsure as to which 

standards he is supposed to follow as the operator of the facility 

 

Chair Evans commented he is sure the issues can be sorted out because they have been doing it for 

years. 

 

Mr. Griffith expressed appreciation to Mr. Day for making his argument for a TRANSCO or a single 

operator.  Mr. Griffith stated it seems Homer is requesting to send these reliability standards to the 

O&D Committee and Mr. Griffith has no objection to that.  He recommends passing the resolution 

and then sending it to the O&D Committee.  Chair Evans stated the reliability standards will go to the 

O&D Committee after the resolution is passed. 

 

The motion was approved with one opposed (HEA). 

 

7O.  Bradley dispatching, losses and scheduling 

 

Mr. Janorschke requested Mr. Day give his presentation on losses and scheduling.  Chair Evans 

invited other technical members to the table, as well. 

 

Mr. Day gave a PowerPoint presentation entitled Bradley Dispatch.  He noted the information is 

given not as the operator of the plant, but as a participant.  Mr. Day explained this issue came to his 

attention through the months of September, October and November.  He stated the Bradley Lake 

Hydro Project governing contract has a requirement that the utilities have a weekly schedule so 

losses can be known.  Mr. Day explained that when Bradley is in the mode of impending spill, where 

the water levels are above 1,175 ft., and if any of the participants cannot take their share of that 

excess energy, then it is required the excess energy be offered to the other utilities.   

 

Mr. Day showed a timeline illustrating when Bradley was in imminent spill.  Mr. Day showed graphs 

illustrating there is no output schedule and energy was wasted during the middle of the day.  He 

stated this wasted energy was not offered to the other utilities, but should have been.  Mr. Day 

commented Chugach is dispatching this joint facility for its own benefit.  Every time the units are 

ramped up and down, a certain amount of loss of life is used to the detriment of the rest of the 

participants.  Mr. Day does not believe this is appropriate. 

 

Mr. Janorschke stated this presentation has to do with the agenda item on dynamic scheduling that 

will come later in the meeting.  Mr. Janorschke showed what the outlook will look like with dynamic 

scheduling, as opposed to the existing contract stating block scheduling.  Mr. Griffith said it is his 

view they are showing dynamic scheduling.  Mr. Day stated it is being done by Chugach for their 

benefit.  Mr. Griffith commented he has a different view of that.  Mr. Griffith does not believe the 

document that required scheduling considers the language in the transmission services agreement that 

says Chugach may dispatch the system under certain conditions to their own benefit and the benefit 

of their customers.  He noted the transmission services agreement clearly gives Chugach the 

authority to do what Mr. Day is objecting to. 

 

Mr. Day commented there is language that allows Chugach to skip schedule or to use Bradley and 

replace the energy to the other utilities, but not to this degree.  Mr. Griffith does not believe there is 

any degree.  Mr. Day stated there is a requirement for a week ahead schedule, which is not being 

done or followed.  Mr. Day said no one is objecting to Chugach doing a true-up at the end of the 

period.  Mr. Day stated he supports dynamic scheduling and he stated that basically all of the energy 

that is produced during imminent spill is free to the participants.  Mr. Day reported HEA got a bill 



 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

BPMC Minutes 12/12/2013 and 12/23/2013                                                            Page 15 of 21  

from Chugach Electric for wholesale power that is out of line, because the energy for that month was 

free.  Mr. Griffith noted he will have to check his bill. 

 

Chair Evans requested Mr. Day give his presentation on losses.  Mr. Day gave a PowerPoint 

presentation entitled "Why Losses Matter to HEA."  He explained Bradley losses have the potential 

to cost HEA a lot of money and this problem can be solved by pre-scheduling per the contracts. 

 

Chair Evans noted those presentations covered the CEA dispatch dispute and the Homer Bradley 

Lake system losses. 

 

7E.  Implementation of dynamic scheduling - Action item 

 

MOTION:  Mr. Griffith made a motion to adopt the dynamic scheduling resolution as 

amended.  Motion seconded by Mr. Posey.  

 

Mr. Griffith requested a brief description of dynamic scheduling with an explanation of how it would 

function in the railbelt.  Mr. Johnson explained the owners of a jointly owned unit will model their 

piece of the plant based on their ownership shares.  If dynamic scheduling is selected then Bradley 

has to work with that party to telemeter their control signal over a data link.  The control signal 

allows outside entities to treat Bradley like it was one of their own units.  The actual Bradley control 

signal would be a composite of the schedules or the dynamic schedules.  As each party receives their 

dynamic schedule, they will need to use that value in their real-time Area Control Error (ACE) 

calculation, or their load balancing control. 

 

Mr. Johnson was asked to explain how Homer losses might be handled under dynamic scheduling.  

Mr. Johnson explained within the energy management system there are dynamic schedules and 

interchange schedules.  If a schedule is known at a given hour, a prediction can be made regarding 

what the losses will be. 

 

Chair Evans asked if a participant changes their schedule and went from zero to 10, the dynamic 

schedule reads the losses and recommends dispatching 11 to get the 10.  This is transparent across 

the intervening system.  Mr. Johnson stated if the energy management system can manage a dynamic 

schedule, the Bradley piece should be treated as one schedule and then the delta on Bradley would be 

allocated and be an offset to their real-time interchange. 

 

Chair Evans asked how Mr. Johnson is handling losses today across the system to participants and if 

it is still inadvertent.  Mr. Johnson commented the Bradley losses are handled with Bradley and all of 

Homer being part of the load balance area.  He explained FERC has a methodology where at the end 

of the month, the energy is rebalanced with Bradley.  Mr. Johnson reported there is a proposal to 

address Mr. Day's concern and if the wheeling of Bradley power is causing six megawatts of losses, 

then Chugach would generate that.  The wheeling piece would be broken up and be generated in real-

time and continue to true those up with some adjustments. 

 

Chair Evans asked if there was some reason why Bradley cannot generate the losses.  Mr. Johnson 

stated Bradley can generate the losses, but any generator is treated as part of the generating 

resources.  Mr. Johnson said the losses could be trued-up after the fact or moved into the normal 

daily scheduling. 

 

Mr. Griffith noted it does not matter who generates the losses, as long as the credit for them fits in 

their nominations.  Chair Evans commented there is a real-time way for the intervening transmission 



 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

BPMC Minutes 12/12/2013 and 12/23/2013                                                            Page 16 of 21  

systems, which would be Homer and Chugach, to have those losses made up, so the balance of the 

generation is transparent.  Mr. Johnson agreed. 

 

Mr. Wick stated up to the end of this year, MEA, Homer, City of Seward, and Chugach have all been 

the same system essentially.  He believes Mr. Day showed a dynamic schedule for Bradley Lake.  

Mr. Wick stated the unit is run with a reg assist with the system and it is all inclusive.  As it breaks 

out, each utility will be able to have a dynamic schedule and schedule the losses and allocated it to 

each utility based on their Bradley load so they are made up in real-time.  The losses in the schedule 

are rounded to the nearest megawatt and will be trued-up at the end of the day. 

 

Mr. Johnson stated Chugach is in the middle of updating with their vendors the current release and 

proposes to defer the dynamic schedule implementation until after the update.  Mr. Griffith asked if 

Chugach is operating the Open System International (OSI) system.  Mr. Johnson agreed.  Mr. Griffith 

noted that is the same system MEA has.  Chair Evans stated it does not matter what interchange 

schedule and package system the participant has and it does not have to be the same as Chugach's. 

 

Mr. Borgeson requested AEA's opinion on whether or not the state supports the dynamic scheduling 

resolution.  Ms. Fisher-Goad said the way she reads the resolution, it is directing the O&D 

Committee to work with Chugach to develop this process to be able to perform the dynamic 

scheduling.  She has no issues with that.  Ms. Fisher-Goad requested to hear HEA's input because it 

sounds like this resolution would help the concerns Mr. Day outlined during his presentation. 

 

Mr. Borgeson asked if GVEA will be able to use Bradley power to follow their wind if there is 

dynamic scheduling at Bradley.  Mr. Griffith stated GVEA can buy it cheaper from MEA and they 

will not have to address Chugach's rate over their transmission lines.  Mr. Johnson stated once 

Bradley goes to dynamic scheduling, the participants send a control signal to Bradley and can treat it 

like another generator.  Mr. Johnson commented if GVEA can follow wind with another generator, 

then it can be followed with the dynamic schedule. 

 

Mr. Borgeson asked if Mr. Johnson's answer was affirmative that he believes GVEA will be able to 

use Bradley power to follow their wind if Bradley goes to dynamic scheduling.  Mr. Wick noted 

GVEA might be right now by trying to keep the tie loaded as much as possible and if GVEA is going 

to dynamically move Bradley up and down on their share, part of the line has to be kept unloaded to 

handle the ups and downs. 

 

Mr. Borgeson stated as unit two is brought on, the tie is not going to be loaded nearly as much as it is 

at this point, which would allow for the flexibility.  Chair Evans commented all of the intervening 

restrictions in the request will have to be incorporated.  Mr. Wick noted there will be a significant 

change when Healy comes online. 

 

Mr. Borgeson asked how does Chugach's requirement to schedule ahead its gas impact dynamic 

scheduling.  He asked if Chugach is really able to do dynamic scheduling if they have to allocate all 

of their gas a day ahead.  Mr. Borgeson asked if the reason Chugach is using Bradley at this point 

and ramping it up and down is because they already have a commitment for gas.  Mr. Wick stated 

when Chugach is regulating with Bradley, it does cut down on the amount that is moved around on 

the fuel nominations.  Chugach does have some leeway to move on those nominations and they do 

smooth it with hydro, which includes Eklutna power plant and Cooper Lake power plant as well. 

 

Mr. Borgeson asked if the day ahead scheduling of the gas will impact Chugach's ability to do 

dynamic scheduling based on factors that intervene in the day.  Mr. Wick disagreed and stated the 

day ahead scheduling of the gas should not impact Chugach's ability to do dynamic scheduling.  Mr. 



 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

BPMC Minutes 12/12/2013 and 12/23/2013                                                            Page 17 of 21  

Wick noted they still have unit commitments and it should not impact that.  Mr. Griffith stated 

Chugach will be affected if they end up with an outage on the transmission line or some anomaly 

occurs and then the gas assumption will probably be off.  Mr. Wick commented under normal 

conditions, there will be no impact, but if there are unit trips or line trips, Chugach currently has to 

reschedule those and would still have to reschedule those depending on what the anticipated length of 

the outage.  Chair Evans noted that scenario is true even if it is not a Chugach unit trip.   

 

Mr. Johnson stated the load forecast could possibly be inaccurate.  If the load is higher or lower, then 

hydro becomes a resource that can be used to help balance it out. 

 

Mr. Borgeson asked what the budgeted cost increase to the Bradley participants if this resolution is 

passed.  Mr. Johnson does not believe there has been a budget item allocated.  The software licensing 

is already within the standard.  A contractor would be used to implement it and would be onsite for a 

couple of weeks.  Mr. Johnson estimates the number is in the tens of thousands of dollars and under 

$50,000.  Mr. Johnson advised each party would be responsible for implementing their connection 

piece, including any software needed to send the signal. 

 

Mr. Borgeson asked what the estimated cost increase is for the participants on an annualized and 

ongoing basis and what kinds of charges will the project see.  Mr. Johnson stated there is no licensing 

fee.  He commented the initial cost is for moving to the dynamic schedule, including professional 

services for implementation and testing.  After that, there are the normal maintenance costs.  Mr. 

Wick stated utilities will still submit schedules on Bradley Lake, even with dynamic scheduling. 

 

Mr. Borgeson advised Golden Valley strongly supports this resolution and expressed his appreciation 

to Chugach and knows it takes time and effort.  He noted that moving forward and discussing a 

TRANSCO independent system operator, the load balancing becomes something everyone really 

wants to have. 

 

Mr. Janorschke stated he likes this resolution.  Mr. Janorschke offered a written friendly amendment 

to the resolution directing the O&D Committee to address the issues regarding dynamic scheduling, 

losses and conflicts with the existing agreements. 

 

The friendly amendment was amended and accepted.  Mr. Gibson read the amendment as a guide to 

help the Committee understand.  "The Committee has determined that it is in the best interest of the 

purchasing utilities and their respective customers or members that the dynamic scheduling be 

implemented for the project.  To that end, the Committee directs the Operation and Dispatch 

Subcommittee to work closely with Chugach to develop a scope, schedule and budget for the 

implementation of master station dynamic scheduling as quickly as is reasonably practical.  This 

review shall include recommended changes to existing contracts (i.e. Bradley Lake Hydro Electric 

Project allocation and scheduling procedures and agreement for Bradley Lake resource scheduling) 

and any applicable standards necessary to allow dynamic scheduling without violation of the 

documents.  It must include methods to apportion losses caused on all the utility participants when a 

participant changes their dispatched amount and further, to develop a budget amendment for this 

project and submit this amendment to the BPMC at their next quarterly BPMC meeting." 

 

The motion was approved unanimously. 

 

7F.  HEA proposed load balancing area - Action item 

 

MOTION:  Mr. Griffith made a motion to adopt Resolution 2013-05.  Motion seconded by Mr. 

Posey.  No vote was taken. 



 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

BPMC Minutes 12/12/2013 and 12/23/2013                                                            Page 18 of 21  

 

MOTION:  Mr. Janorschke made a motion to table Resolution 2013-05.  Motion seconded by 

Mr. Foutz.  The motion to table was approved with four in favor and two opposed (MEA & 

CEA). 

 

MOTION:  Mr. Griffith made a motion to bring Resolution 2013-05 Telemetry of Bradley 

Lake of the Chugach load balancing area to the next Bradley Lake Project Management 

Committee meeting to be called by the Chair.  Motion not seconded.  No vote was taken. 

 

7G.  HEA O&M operator status - Action item 

 

MOTION:  Mr. Griffith made a motion to adopt Resolution 2013-06 as amended, Change of 

project operator.  Motion seconded by Mr. Borgeson. 

 

Ms. Fisher-Goad stated she is going to vote no on this resolution and requests discussion at some 

point with respect to the concerns.  She noted BPMC is six months into a five-year contract. 

 

Mr. Griffith asked if AEA has veto authority on this resolution.  Mr. Gibson stated his review of this 

resolution is that it is an advisory resolution, which would need a majority of the quorum to pass. 

 

Mr. Janorschke requested explanation of the basis for the statement regarding that this is no longer in 

the best interest of the project.  He asked if a cost analysis has been prepared.  Mr. Borgeson does not 

believe a cost analysis has been done.  Mr. Borgeson explained his support for this resolution comes 

from the fact that the last time the contract was renewed there was not a cost analysis done on 

whether Homer should continue.  He stated there is no intent to break the existing contract and 

believes it is time to put everyone on notice, especially Homer, there will be a different process the 

next time this comes up for review. 

 

Ms. Fisher-Goad stated her issue is that the first, “be it further resolved” is not consistent with the 

discussion.  Chair Evans believes the nature of the wording is a housekeeping issue and AEA would 

be obligated to inform HEA of the vote and does not preclude any other activities.  Ms. Fisher-Goad 

believes the message has been delivered, given the fact there is a motion to adopt the resolution.  

Chair Evans respectfully disagreed because it was eclipsed the last time the contract was renewed.  

 

Mr. Borgeson requested Mr. Gibson expound on his reason for believing this resolution is advisory.  

Mr. Gibson explained the direction is to immediately provide notice that the contract will not be 

renewed.  It is not a termination notice. 

 

Mr. Bjorkquist believes the concern with the language in this resolution is in giving notice, the 

contract is not going to be renewed.  This changes the dynamic of the contract between AEA and 

Homer Electric.  Currently the way the contract works is the agreement continues unless two years' 

prior notice is given. This resolution is saying the contract will not be renewed.  If this passes, AEA 

has to affirmatively do something different to get a new operator in 2018 or to continue the 

contractual relationship with Homer, rather than just allowing the automatic renewal to take place. 

 

Mr. Gibson stated nothing can be done for four years and six months.  The BPMC is instructing 

AEA, the contractor of the O&M agreement, to not automatically renew the contract for another five 

years. 

 

Mr. Bjorkquist stated this resolution would take away the possibility of an automatic renewal in 

2016.  He noted in order for AEA to contract with Homer, AEA will have to proactively do 



 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

BPMC Minutes 12/12/2013 and 12/23/2013                                                            Page 19 of 21  

something, rather than allowing the automatic renewal under the current agreement.  Mr. Gibson 

stated the BPMC could pull this resolution back.  Mr. Bjorkquist is not certain the notice can be 

withdrawn, which is the concern.  He advised this is implementing a contract between AEA and 

Homer Electric and AEA cannot unilaterally force Homer back into what was the provision with the 

automatic renewal.  That is under the contract as it now exists.  Homer would have to at least accept 

the withdrawal and agree to it. 

 

Mr. Borgeson asked how many automatic renewals are there in the contract with Homer as the 

operator.  Mr. Bjorkquist stated it is on a five-year rotating basis.  Mr. Borgeson asked if the term 

ever ends.  Mr. Gibson stated there are ways to terminate it, but there are going to be three 

evergreens and stop.  There are issues that if Homer cannot perform under the budget they are given, 

they can provide notice.  Mr. Bjorkquist stated there are mechanisms for termination if there is cause. 

 

Mr. Borgeson asked for an explanation as to why there is automatic renewal in the contract.  Mr. 

Gibson stated that was bargained for in the agreement between HEA, AEA and the BPMC.  Mr. 

Bjorkquist stated it also provides some administrative efficiencies for AEA. 

 

Ms. Fisher-Goad stated her issue with this language is what happens between now and four-and-a-

half years, because right now this resolution is saying AEA needs to provide notice that the O&M 

agreement will not be renewed.  The resolution gives AEA no directional perspective what the 

BPMC wants done with respect to how the consistency of the operation of the project should be 

maintained.  Ms. Fisher-Goad said it was mentioned no analysis was done in 2008 when this was 

originally negotiated, perhaps BPMC would like to give AEA some direction with respect to that 

issue.  She noted there are costs associated with terminating, wind-down and demobilization. 

 

Ms. Fisher-Goad commented there are clearly some issues the BPMC wants AEA to explore with 

respect to Homer, but she does not believe this resolution addresses those issues and is incomplete.  

She recommends the BPMC to give direction to AEA.  Ms. Fisher-Goad gave a commitment to work 

to make sure that AEA does the appropriate analysis with respect to the operation of the project. 

 

Two amendments were given and accepted. "Now, therefore, it is hereby resolved by the Committee 

as follows: That AEA is directed to immediately provide notice to HEA that the project O&M 

agreement will not be automatically renewed without a cost benefit analysis and management review 

being performed."  The second amendment reads; "AEA notify the Committee when the notice has 

been provided to HEA that its services as operator under the project O&M agreement will not be 

automatically renewed without a cost benefit analysis and management review being performed and 

therefore could conclude July 1, 2018." 

 

Ms. Fisher-Goad recommended AEA will come back at the next quarterly meeting with any budget 

impacts with respect to the work that needs to be completed for the cost benefit analysis.  Mr. 

Borgeson stated AEA can bring any budget impacts to the next annual meeting. 

 

Mr. Janorschke requests the sentence be stricken which reads; "the Committee has determined that it 

is in the best interest of the purchasing utilities."  Mr. Janorschke does not believe anything has been 

determined yet, other than the desire to have a management and budget review. 

 

Mr. Janorschke stated he was surprised to hear counsel reference some concerns regarding HEA and 

AEA referenced issues regarding HEA.  Mr. Janorschke noted he is not aware of any concerns or 

issue at Bradley and HEA's performance to date.  Mr. Janorschke requested if any participants have 

issues or concerns on how Bradley is operated and maintained, please let HEA know because 

corrections cannot be made if the issues are not brought forward.   



 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

BPMC Minutes 12/12/2013 and 12/23/2013                                                            Page 20 of 21  

 

Mr. Janorschke asked if the next agenda would include a resolution on the dispatch agreement.  He 

believes it is appropriate to review all of the agreements.  Chair Evans stated he would place Mr. 

Janorschke's request on the next agenda. 

 

The motion was approved with one opposed (HEA). 

 

7H.  Battle Creek update 

 

Chair Evans invited Mr. Carey to provide an update on Battle Creek and asked if he was substantially 

increasing the budget for the project.  Mr. Carey advised an independent cost estimate has been 

conducted and came in verbally at $60 million but he has not seen the document yet. 

 

Chair Evans asked if the numbers have been rerun on the economics at the $60 million target.  Mr. 

Carey stated he has not rerun the numbers.  Chair Evans asked if we are still standing by the 36,000 

megawatt hours.  Mr. Carey believes the FERC amendment is using 37,000 megawatt hours. 

 

Mr. Borgeson stated he does not believe the additional cost will dramatically impact the cost of 

power out of the project.  He asked over how many years the cost will be spread.  Mr. Carey believes 

they are using 35 years.  Chair Evans noted that is a 20 percent increase.  Mr. Carey thinks the 

interest rate will be one of the biggest drivers. 

 

Mr. Griffith asked what happens if there is no additional state money added to this project.  Mr. 

Carey advised AEA would proceed with the amendment and the go/no-go decision with regard to 

construction can be made after returning from FERC.  There will be a much greater financial analysis 

completed on the different rates and different financing assumptions.  Mr. Griffith asked if the idea 

has been abandoned of the 50/50 Bradley Lake participation arrangement.  Mr. Griffith asked if Mr. 

Carey is suggesting the utilities carry all of the debt. 

 

Ms. Fisher-Goad requested to answer instead of Mr. Carey.  Ms. Fisher-Goad stated there will be a 

point when the BPMC will need to make a decision if state support cannot be found for a portion of 

the cost and whether it is worth the continuation, potential construction and financing.  Ms. Fisher-

Goad noted Ms. Walker has been brought back to look at this issue and help work through the 

existing power sales agreement and bring potential financing options back to the Committee after 

session.  Ms. Fisher-Goad advised there is no additional cost to BPMC for this because it is part of 

the current financial arrangement.  Mr. Griffith commented a lot more will be known after session.   

 

Mr. Borgeson asked if the utilities need to contribute any additional funds to do the studies to get to a 

go or no-go decision.  Ms. Fisher-Goad believes no additional funds are needed.  Mr. Borgeson asked 

if the utilities would have a chance to opt out or not pay for any additional expenses on this issue 

before they were incurred.  Ms. Fisher-Goad advised that the process would be similar to other 

motions the BPMC has made to support this project with additional funds, because there are a 

combination of Renewable Energy Fund dollars associated with this, the state's direct appropriation 

through the existing project, and also the $500,000 from BPMC.  Mr. Griffith believes the 

contribution was $670,000. 

 

Mr. Borgeson asked if BPMC would be able to stop all further work on this project by a vote.  Ms. 

Fisher-Goad agreed.  Mr. Borgeson asked if AEA would have a veto power over this vote.  Chair 

Evans stated BPMC came up with the original seed money to do the concept and high level 

engineering.  He noted Chugach procured a grant and turned that over on behalf of the BPMC to the 






